
Planning Commission  
Mark Piotrowski, Chairperson 
Wilbert Fobbs III 
Jason Hammond 
Charito Hulleza 
Bruce Kantor 
Les Stansbery 
Anna Thompson 

CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
Tuesday, April 21, 2020 

7:00 p.m.  
27400 SOUTHFIELD RD., LATHRUP VILLAGE, MI 48076 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. Call to order and Pledge of Allegiance

2. Roll Call

3. Approval of Agenda

4. Approval of meeting minutes
a. Regular Meeting – January 21, 2020

5. Public Comment – regarding items not listed on the agenda

6. New Business
a. 2020 – 2025 Capital Improvements Plan
b. Zoning amendments – Building materials
c. Site Plan Review – Lathrup Shopping Plaza (26710 Southfield Road)

7. Old Business and Tabled Items
a. Comprehensive Plan

i. Virtual Open House
ii. Parking options
iii. Priority redevelopment sites

8. Other Matters for Discussion

9. General communication & correspondence
a. Legal Update
b. Planning Update
c. Staff Update

10. Adjournment

Zoom Webinar 
https://zoom.us/j/98013564213?pwd=b3JEN1gzVWtzNVJraG15L3hDMTk0UT09 
Meeting ID: 980 1356 4213
Password: 625819

lytwy
Highlight



            CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE                                                                                       PLANNING COMMISSION               

At 7:04 p.m. the Regular meeting was called to order by Chair Piotrowski on Tuesday, January 21, 2020 

in the City Council Chambers of the Municipal Building, 27400 Southfield Road, Lathrup Village, 

Michigan.

Commissioners Present:  Mark Piotrowski, Chair

Bruce Kantor, City Council Liaison

Anna Thompson, Secretary           

Charito Hulleza, Resident

Les Stansbery, Resident

Excused: Jason Hammond, Vice Chair

Staff Present: Dr. Sheryl L. Mitchell, City Administrator, Yvette Talley, City 

Clerk

Also Present: Scott Baker, City Attorney, Jill Bahm and Meghan Cuneo of 

Giffels Webster         

All present joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

PC‐01‐20                                   CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Roll call was taken.  Motion by Commissioner Kantor, seconded by Commissioner Hulleza to excuse 

Commissioner Jason Hammond from this meeting.

Motion carried.

PC‐02‐20                                   APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion by Commissioner Kantor, seconded by Commissioner Stansbery to approve the Agenda.

Motion carried.

PC‐03‐20                                   MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING ON DECEMBER 17, 2019

Motion by Commissioner Thompson, seconded by Commissioner Kantor to approve the minutes of the 

Regular Meeting of December 17, 2019 with a correction.

Motion carried.

PC‐04‐20                                   Election of Officers (Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary)

Motion by Commissioner Hulleza, seconded by Commissioner Kantor to nominate Mark Piotrowski as 

Chairperson for 2020.

Motion carried.

Motion by Commissioner Hulleza, seconded by Commissioner Kantor to nominate Jason Hammond as 

Vice‐Chairperson for 2020.

1                                 City of Lathrup Village Planning Commission Meeting                                         January 21, 2020



Motion carried.

Motion by Chairperson Piotrowski, seconded by Commissioner Kantor to nominate Anna Thompson as 

Secretary for 2020.

Motion carried.

PC‐05‐20                                   PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no audience participation.

PC ‐06‐20                                  OLD BUSINESS and TABLED ITEMS

a. Comprehensive Plan

i.  2015 Master Plan Action Strategies Prioritization results and discussion

Jill Bahm introduce the new staff planner, Meghan Cuneo.  Jill Bahm gave an overview and answered 

specific questions about the action strategy survey.  Discussed providing written notification to City 

Council of the action strategy survey by identifying priorities. Requesting City Council to identify funding 

source(s).  The next step is to look at Village Center, Southfield Road Corridor, future land use map, if it 

needs to change and why it may need to change.  

ii. Initial Market Study Findings

Looked at housing in Oakland County and how the recession impacted housing.  Suggested actions; 

discussed demand estimates/marketable activity of housing/senior housing, goods and services, 

enhancing walkability within neighborhoods, understanding the barrier with Southfield road/I696 and 

expanding specialty food opportunities.  Commissioner Hulleza said asked Ms. Bahm from her vantage 

point that begin to tell a story about the needs of the residents. Next, will be an open‐house, more plan 

development and a public hearing.  Commissioner Hulleza said highlight the findings from the survey of 

the Commissioners and the two assessment questions from the survey of the residents to form the 

design in framing the public meeting.  

PC‐07‐20                  NEW BUSINESS

None

PC‐08‐20                  OTHER MATTERS FOR DISCUSSION

None

PC‐09‐20                                   GENERAL COMMUNICATION & CORRESPONDENCE

a. Legal Update

None



b. Planning Update

None

c. Staff Update

Susie Stec said Mr. Surnow will re‐group and return with a sight plan for 26710‐

26780 Southfield Rd.  Will meet with him to discuss Panera Bread 

redevelopment.  Meeting with Southfield, Lathrup Village and Beverly Hills and 

Oakland County Road Commission on Thursday, January 23 4:00 p.m.‐ 6:00 

p.m. regarding Southfield Rd.

PC‐10‐20                                   ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Commissioner Thompson, seconded by Commissioner Stansbery to adjourn this meeting. 

Motion carried.

The meeting adjourned at 8:16 p.m.

Submitted by Yvette Talley

Recording Secretary            

3                                 City of Lathrup Village Planning Commission Meeting                                         January 21, 2020



 

Local Branch 
www.GiffelsWebster.com 

 

 

memorandum 
 
DATE:   April 20, 2020 

TO:   Lathrup Village Planning Commission  

CC:  Sheryl Mitchel, City Administrator  

FROM:   Jill Bahm, AICP & Matt Wojciechowski; Giffels Webster  

SUBJECT:  Capital Improvement Plan – 2020-2025 

 

 
The Michigan Planning Enabling Act requires the Planning Commission to prepare the CIP. Generally, this 
is interpreted to mean that the Planning Commission oversees the process and acts to ensure public 
projects identified in the city’s long-range plans are incorporated. 

The process for drafting the CIP starts with department heads reviewing their needs and identifying 
capital projects over $5,000 over the next six years. The first year of the CIP generally ties into the city’s 
operating budget.  

Following the development of the project list, the subcommittee, comprised of two Planning 
Commissioners and staff, reviewed it; the projects were incorporated into the CIP. In the attached draft, 
new projects representing a change from the 2019-2024 CIP appear in yellow highlight.  

The most exciting new component of the CIP is the development of an online platform intended to help 
with transparency about the CIP and improve understanding of how projects may relate. Please refer to 
the plan page 13 or use the following link: 
https://oakgov.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/45dd43a3429a404b9d8287f
40d2e7d57 

At its April 21, 2020 meeting, the Planning Commission will review the draft and make a 
recommendation to City Council. Due to the timing with the City Council preparation of the budget, the 
public hearing on the CIP will be held by the City Council in coming weeks. 

 

https://oakgov.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/45dd43a3429a404b9d8287f40d2e7d57
https://oakgov.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/45dd43a3429a404b9d8287f40d2e7d57


P R E P A R E D  F O R :  

C I T Y  O F  L AT H R U P  V I L L AG E 
P L A N N I N G  CO M M I S S I O N  
27400 S O U T H F I E L D  R OA D 
L AT H R U P  V I L L AG E,  M I 
48076

APRIL 2020

City of Lathrup Village
2020 Capital Improvement Plan



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              2

Intentionally Blank 



Table of Contents 

INTRODUCTION...............................................................................5
PROGRAM AREAS..........................................................................10
PROJECT  INVENTORY....................................................................13 
	 Administrative....................................................................................14
	 Department of Public Services .................................................................15
	 Downtown Development Authority ............................................................17
	 Parks..............................................................................................18
	 Police ...........................................................................................20
	 Roads.............................................................................................21
	 Sewer ...........................................................................................22
	 Water ...........................................................................................24



Introduction 



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              5

Introduction 

The 2020-2025 City of Lathrup Village Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
will serve as a tool to assist the city in turning long-range policy planning 
into real improvements on the ground.  A six-year capital improvement 
plan and an annual update of that plan is a requirement for the City of 
Lathrup Village under the Michigan Planning Enabling Act of 2008.  The 
following report identifies the major capital improvements needed and/
or planned for the community, the timeframe for implementation of those 
improvements, and the budget and revenue sources that will make those 
improvements a reality.  Capital improvements cover multiple departments 
within the City of Lathrup Village and include new facilities, water and 
sewer line replacements and improvements, police equipment, parks and 
recreation facilities, non-motorized pathways, and professional services. 
	

WHAT IS A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP)?

A Capital Improvement Plan is a six-year schedule of public physical 
improvements which identifies the needs for improvements and the sources of 
funding to make those improvements.  It provides a schedule of expenditures for 
constructing, maintaining, upgrading, and/or replacing a community’s physical 
inventory.  The CIP, therefore, is a tool to assess the long-term capital project 
requirements (the “big jobs”) of Lathrup Village.  Since capital improvement 
projects are spread across multiple community needs (fire protection, police, 
water and sewer, parks and recreation, municipal administration, etc.), the 
CIP prioritizes these projects across the entire community and over time, 
providing a comparison of the community’s various needs and wants.    

 

Drainage ditch repair (Giffels Webster, 2020)

City Street in Lathrup Village (Giffels Webster, 2020)



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              6

Capital improvement projects are major and infrequent expenditures, 
such as the construction of a new facility, a major rehabilitation or repair 
of an existing facility, or the purchase of major equipment.  Capital 
improvement projects are non-recurring expenditures that tend to be large 
both in physical size and in cost, and have a long-term usefulness (10 
years or more) .  Examples of capital improvement projects can include:

•	Construction of a new city hall

•	Construction of a new police station

•	Extension or replacement of a water/sewer line

•	Major rehabilitation of a city’s community center

•	Creation of a new city park

•	Large equipment and vehicles

Each city department is asked to take a long view look at future initiatives 
or improvements that may require capital purchases in order to be fully 
implemented. Each department works to improve the manner by which 
the city delivers services to its residents and stakeholders. Lists of need are 
developed based on research and discussions with communities that have 
similar needs. The majority of the capital purchases in these categories are 
funded through the general fund or other dedicated city funds. Thorough 
knowledge and research of our future planned costs allows for the pursuit of 
grant and other outside funding sources to meet our policy goals. The following 
sections discuss the city’s various needs and proposed funding by department. 

The term “major expenditure” is relative; what is “major” to one community 
might be “minor” to another.  The City of Ann Arbor, for example, sets a 
minimum threshold of $100,000 for projects to be included in the City’s 
CIP, while the City of Rochester Hills sets a minimum of $25,000.  Lathrup 
Village’s policy for determining a Capital Improvement is defined in the 
following section.

WHAT ARE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS?

Lathrup Village DPS yard (Giffels Webster, 2020)



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              7

WHAT IS THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE’S CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT POLICY (CIP)?

A capital improvement project is a major, nonrecurring expenditure that 
meets one of more of the following criteria:

•	 Any acquisition of land for a public purpose which costs $5,000 or 
more.

•	 Any construction of a new public facility (city building, water/sewer 
lines, pathways), or any addition to an existing public facility, the 
cost of which equals $5,000 or more and has a useful life of three 
or more years.

•	 A nonrecurring rehabilitation (not to include annual/recurring 
maintenance) of a building, its grounds, a facility, or equipment, the 
cost of said rehabilitation being $5,000 or more with a useful life of 
three or more years.

•	 Purchase of major equipment which, individually or in total, cost 
$5,000 or more with a useful life of three or more years.

Planning, feasibility, engineering, or design studies related to an individual 
capital improvement project, or program implemented through individual 
capital improvement projects, with a cost of $5,000 or more and a useful life 
of three or more years.

WHAT IS THE ROLE OF THE CITY PLANNING 
COMMISSION IN THE CIP PROCESS?

The Capital Improvement Program is a dynamic planning document, intended 
to serve as a tool to implement the City of Lathrup Village’s Master Plan.  The 
Master Plan should correspondingly include capital improvement projects 
as well as guide long-term capital planning.  The Planning Commission is 
uniquely qualified to manage the development and annual update of the 
City’s CIP, based on their role in creating and updating the city’s Master Plan.  
The Planning Commission’s role will ensure that public works projects are 
consistent with the land uses identified within the Master Plan.  By making 
a recommendation of approval for the CIP to the City Council, the Planning 
Commission agrees that the projects outlined within it reasonably address 
the city’s capital improvement needs.     
 

Lathrup Village public safety vehicles (Giffels Webster, 
2020)

Lathrup Village 2019 CIP (Giffels Webster, 2020)



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              8

The CIP is an essential link between planning for capital improvement 
projects and budgeting for them.  Once approved by the City Council, the 
CIP can be used to develop the capital project portion of the city’s budget.  
Those projects included in the CIP’s first year (2020) potentially form the 
basis for the upcoming year’s capital project budget.  As the CIP is annually 
updated, a continuous relationship will be maintained between the CIP and 
the city’s annual budget. The annual update to the CIP will typically occur in 
advance of the preparation of the city’s budget.          

WHAT ARE THE BENEFITS OF PREPARING A CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN?

•	Prudent use of taxpayer dollars

•	Prioritizing projects across the needs of the community and across   
departments (an “apples-to-apples” comparison)

•	Generating community support by inviting public input 

•	Promoting economic development

•	Improving the city’s eligibility for State and Federal grants

•	Providing an implementation tool for the goals and objectives of the 
city’s Master Plan

•	Transparency in identification of high-priority projects

•	Coordination / cost-sharing between projects  

 

 

Lathrup Village DPS yard (Giffels Webster, 2020)

Damaged storm sewer culvert (Giffels Webster, 2020)



Program Areas 



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              10

The following sections outline the Program Areas of the City of Lathrup 
Village’s CIP: 

1.	 Data Collection Process
2.	 Data Compilation Process
3.	 CIP Adoption Process

The components of the CIP are compiled and reported by Program Areas. 
The following table (Figure 1) displays the Program Areas used in this CIP 
(each assigned with a color). These program areas represent the stakeholders 
in the CIP. 

1 .   DATA  CO L L E C T I O N . Each of the stakeholders outlined above has 
either a master plan or schedule that defines the needs and resource level 
within their respective area of responsibility. To more easily identify projects, 
standard forms were created that allow the stakeholders to define their 
projects and resource allocation levels. The standard forms used for data 
collection are found in the Appendix.  

 

FIGURE 1 CIP PROGRAM AREAS

AD Administrative

DPS Department of Public Services 

DDA Downtown Development Authority

PR Parks & Recreation

PD Police Department

R Roads

S Sewer

W Water 

Program Areas 

Sarackwood Park (Google, 2020)

Capital Project Request form 



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              11

•	 P R O J E C T  A P P L I C AT I O N  F O R M  - Consists of project 
descriptions, schedules, necessity, and possible sources of funding. 
The information provides an understanding of the overall scope of each 
project and how it is valued within its program area and within the City.  
While stakeholders may be aware of major projects further out on the 
horizon, only those planned for within the six-year window of the 2020-
2026 CIP were included.

•	 P R O J E C T  CO S T  D E TA I L  F O R M  - Consists of a matrix of six 
(6) budget years across the top of the form and a listing of costing 
components along the side of the form. The form is split into two (2) 
parts; the upper half is the capital cost for the project and the lower half 
is the cost of operations or maintenance for that project if applicable. 
Recognition of the operations and maintenance costs of a project is 
a valuable tool in forecasting future needs for resource allocation.  
Investment in a new facility is only worthwhile if there are funds available 
to operate and maintain it.

•	 P R O J E C T  R AT I N G  F O R M  -  This form is used when new projects 
are identified but cannot all be funded within a given fiscal year. The 
forms are used to rate both the importance and impact of a project 
within its program area and within the city. The ratings are weighted 
with emphasis given to those projects that are mandated by law, by 
agreement, or because they are a matter affecting health safety and 
welfare. Projects without a rankling were not competing for funding, 
either because they are mandatory or because no other similar projects 
were proposed. 

2 .   DATA  CO M P I L AT I O N .  The information received from the 
stakeholders has been compiled into a Project Summary Worksheet. This 
worksheet contains all of the projects in the CIP over six (6) budget years 
with a cost summary of each budget year by program area and for the entire 
CIP. Included with the worksheet is the listing of possible funding sources 
and an estimate of the city’s share for each project. The project summary 
worksheet can be found in the Appendix of this CIP.

A definition of the standard CIP forms is provided as follows:

Lathrup Village welcome sign (Giffels Webster, 2020)



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              12

Figure 2 - CIP Adoption Process

P O L I C Y  D O C U M E N T S 

Master Land Use Plan Downtown Development Authority 

Local Road Plan Master Water and Sewer Plan 

Recreation Plan Other Approved Programs 

P R O J E C T  T Y P E S

Master Plan Studies and Updates Streetscape Updates 

Local Road Improvements Stormwater Management 

Park Enhancements  Water line replacement 

P R O J E C T  P R O C E S S I N G 

Project Application Review Project Evaluation and Rating 

Project Summary Prioritized by year 

D R A F T  C A P I TA L  I M P R O V E M E N T  P L A N 

P U B L I C  H E A R I N G 

Planning Commission* 

A D M I N I S T R AT I V E  R E V I E W  O F  P U B L I C  H E A R I N G

Revisions and Recommendation on CIP

P L A N N I N G  CO M M I S S I O N

RECOMMENDATION OF ADOPTION TO CITY COUNCIL

F I S C A L  C I P  TO  C I T Y  CO U N C I L

RESOLUTION OF ADOPTION AND INCLUSION IN UPCOMING YEAR’S 
FISCAL-YEAR BUDGET

3.   C I P  A D O P T I O N  P R O C E S S .  The adoption process involves a public hearing to solicit citizen input.  The CIP will 
then be modified (if necessary), approved by the city Planning Commission (via a formal recommendation for approval to the 
City Council), and forwarded to the City Council for adoption.  Adoption of the CIP by the City Council does not constitute an 
authorization to commit resources to any project. This approval is recognition of a plan for projects within the community that 
may move toward implementation in the future. The projects included within Year 1 of the Capital Improvement Plan potentially 
form the basis for the upcoming year’s capital projects budget.  An outline of the process is displayed in Figure 2 on the following 
page.

* The Public hearing was 
held by the City Council as 
part of their budget adoption 
due to timing. The Planning 
Commission reviewed and 
recommended adoption of 
the 2020 CIP at their April 
202 meeting



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN                              13

Project Inventory  
Below is a summarized list of all projects considered for the 2020 Capital Improvement Plan. Project details are shown on the 

following pages; they can also be viewed online via the Interactive CIP Dashboard Map.  

INTERACTIVE CIP DASHBOARD URL:

https://oakgov.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.html#/45dd43a3429a404b9d8287f40d2e7d57 

Project Number Name Fiscal year start Funding source Total 

Administrative 
AD20-01 Monitors 2020/2021 General $14,171

Administrative Total $14,471

Department of Public Services (DPS)
DPS20-01 New Parking Lot - DPS 2020/2021  TBD  $60,000 

DPS20-02 Backhoe tractor 2020/2021  TBD  $100,000 

DPS20-03 Leaf Vac 2021/2022  TBD  $40,000 

DPS20-04 Hotpatch Trailer 2022/2023  TBD  $7,500 

DPS20-05 Flatbed/dumpbox 2022/2023  TBD  $15,000 

DPS20-06 New roof 2023/2024  TBD  $30,000 

DPS20-07 4WD Pick-up truck 2024/2025  TBD  $45,000 

DPS Total $297,500

Downtown Development Authority (DDA)
DDA20-01 Hanging Flower Baskets 2020/2021  DDA Funds   $6,700 

DDA20-02 Light Pole Banners 2020/2021  DDA Funds   $4,185 

DDA20-03 Southfi eld Rd ROW parking 2020/2021  DDA Funds   TBD 

DDA20-04 Complete Streets - DDA share 2020/2021  DDA Funds   $6,300

DDA20-05 Bus Stop Improvements 2020/2021  DDA Funds   $5,000 

DDA Total $41,105

Parks and Recreation (P&R)
PR20-01 Park Investment Package 2020/2021 General Fund  $20,000 

PR20-02 Community Vegetable Garden 2020/2021 General Fund  $8,000 

PR20-03 Dog Park Pre-planning TBD TBD TBD

PR20-04 Splash Pad Study and Planning TBD TBD TBD

PR20-05 Goldengate Park Update Study and Planning TBD TBD TBD

PR20-06 Replace Sarackwood Playground Equipment TBD TBD TBD

PR20-07 Construction of Dog Park TBD TBD TBD

PR20-08 Goldengate Park Remodel TBD TBD TBD

PR20-09 Acquisition and Development of Southeast 

Quadrant Park

TBD TBD TBD

P&R Total $28,000

Police 
P20-01 Axon Taser 2020/2021  Police   $8,900 

P20-02 Patrol Vehicle 2021/2022  Police   $45,000 

P20-03 Speed Trailer 2020/2021  Police   $8,000 

P20-04 Mobile Radios 2021/2022  Police   $30,000 

P20-05 New Police Station Study 2021/2022  Police   $5,000 

Police Total $96,900



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              14

INTERACTIVE CIP DASHBOARD URL:

https://oakgov.maps.arcgis.com/apps/opsdashboard/index.htmll#/45dd43a3429a404b9d8287f40d2e7d57

Project Number Name Fiscal year start Funding source Total 

Roads 
R20-01 Matching TIP Funds 2020/2021 General Fund $13,3,000

R20-01 2020 Paving Program 2020/2021 Local/Major Road Fund $250,000 

R20-02 2021 Paving Program 2021/2022 Local/Major Road Fund $250,000 

R20-03 2022 Paving Program 2022/2023 Local/Major Road Fund $250,000 

Roads Total $767,300

Sanitary Sewer
S20-01 2020 Sewer Improvements 2020/2021 Sewer  $120,000 

S20-02 2021 Sewer Improvements 2021/2022 Sewer  $120,000 

S20-03 2022 Sewer Improvements 2022/2023 Sewer  $120,000 

Sanitary Sewer Total $360,000

Water
W20-01 2020 Water Main Repair Program (II of III) 2020/2021  Water fund  $400,000 

W20-02 2020 Water Main Repair Program (III of III) 2021/2022  Water fund  $180,000 

W20-03 2021 Water Main Repair Program 2021/2022  Water fund  $325,000 

W20-04 2022 Water Main Repair Program 2022/2023  Water fund  $475,000 

W20-05 2023 Water Main Repair Program 2023/2024  Water fund  $475,000 

W20-06 Gate Vale Replacement 2021/2025  Water fund  $960,000 

W20-07 Fire Hydrant Replacement Program 2021/2022  Water Fund  $544,000 

W20-08 Lead and Copper Investigation 2021/2022  Water fund   $250,000 

W20-09 Lead and Copper Investigation 2022/2023  Water Fund  $250,000 

Water Total $3,609,000

ALL PROJECT TOTAL                                                                                                                                    $5,274,976

Project Inventory - continued  



THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              15

The City Administrator is responsible for the efficient administration of all City Departments, ensuring all laws and ordinances are 
enforced, development of an annual budget, and maintenance of an accounting system that shall conform with the laws and 
generally accepted accounting principles. The administrative departments include the office of the City Administrator, Treasurer, 
City Clerk, and the City’s boards and commissions. This category also includes general inter-departmental needs such as 
copiers, printers and other office equipment. 

Administrative 

AD20-01 Monitors 

Project Year: 2020/2021

Purchase of new audio and visual equipment for City Hall
Estimated Cost: $ 14,171

Funding Source: General

Ranking: TBD

Lathrup Village City Hall (Giffels Webster, 2019)



DPS20-01 New Parking Lot - DPS

Project Year: 2020-2021
Entire DPS parking lot is falling apart and salt/dirt are getting into 
the storm sewers. It is hard to maneuver and is unsafe. 

Estimated Cost: $60,000

Funding Source: General Fund

Ranking: TBD

DPS20-02 Backhoe Tractor

Project Year: 2021-2022

Current tractor is 12 years old and in need of replacement.  Estimated Cost: $100,000

Funding Source: General Fund

Ranking: TBD

DPS20-03 Leaf Vac

Project Year: 2021-2022
Newest vac is three years old; next oldest is 12 years old and 
needs to be moved to backup status to ensure continuation of 
leaf program. 

Estimated Cost: $40,000

Funding Source: General Fund

Ranking: TBD

DPS20-04 Hot-patch Trailer

Project Year: 2022/2023
A new trailer is needed to keep patch pliable and speed up the 
process of keeping roads in good  condition. 

Estimated Cost: $7,500

Funding Source: General Fund

Ranking: TBD

DPS20-05 Flatbed dump-box 

Project Year: 2022/2023

Estimated Cost: $15,000

Funding Source: General Fund

Ranking: TBD

DPS20-06 New Roof for DPS building 

Project Year: 2023/2024

Estimated Cost: $30,000

Funding Source: General Fund

Ranking: TBD

Lathrup Village has maintained a contract with the private company Lathrup Services to manage all of its public service provisions. 
Services such as water main repair, snow plowing, landscaping and general maintenance and repairs fall into this category.  
    

Department of Public Services

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              16



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              17

DPS20-08 New 4WD Pick-up truck 

Project Year: TBD

Current truck is from 2006 and is in need of replacement Estimated Cost: TBD

Funding Source: General Fund

Ranking: TBD

Lathrup Village DPS pick-cup truck (Giffels Webster, 
2020)

Lathrup Village DPS yard - rear parking lot (Giffels Webster, 2020)

Lathrup Village DPS yard - entrance and front parking lot (Giffels Webster, 2020)



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              18

Downtown Development Authority - Equipment 

The  DDA  has  proposed  improvements  to  Southfield  Road  at  the gateways to the City as incremental improvements while the 
Southfield Road improvement project awaits federal funding priority. These projects will bolster economic development efforts 
to keep Lathrup Village competitive and attractive for business development. Streetlight Improvements include transitioning 
street lights to LEDs and installment of additional streetlights in the Village Center, which will improve lighting and create a more 
walkable, safe, downtown.  

DDA20-01 Hanging Flower Baskets 

Project Year: 2020/2021- 2024/2026

Purchase of 25 Flower baskets, soil and flowers ($6,700) and six 
years of maintenance at $350 annually (including 2020)

Estimated Cost: $8,800 

Funding Source: DDA Funds 

Ranking: 3

DDA20-02 Light Pole Banners 

Project Year: 2020/2021
Purchase of 20 light pole banners for placement on light poles 
within the DDA. Includes $1,920 equipment purchase FY 2020-
2022 and $2,150 annual instillation cost (six years) 

Estimated Cost: $19,005

Funding Source: DDA Funds

Ranking: 3

Existing Light pole banner on Southfield Road (Giffels Webster, 2020)



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              19

Downtown Development Authority - Capital Projects 

DDA20-03 Southfield Road ROW parking 

Project Year: 2021 - 2025 This proposed project intends to begin mitigating anticipated 
PROW parking loss as a result of the Southfield Road widening/
reconstruction. There is an estimated 135 needed (27 spaces a 
year x 5 years). Federal funds may become available in 2021 that 
would help offset the cost to the city. 

Estimated Cost: $771,585 ($154,317 annually) 

Funding Source: TBD 

Ranking: 4

DDA20-04 Complete Streets - DDA atch 

Project Year: 2020/2021 Implement complete streets city-wide bicycle route wayfinding 
elements. Plan includes pavement markings, signage and bike 
repair kiosks. The city received $60,00 in grant funds (Act 51 and 
TAP) and is paying a matching $20,000 ($6,700 from DDA and 
$13,300 from General Fund) for a total of $80,000. 

Estimated Cost: $6,700 

Funding Source: DDA Funds

Ranking: 3

DDA20-06 Bus Stop Improvements  

Project Year: 2020 - 2026 

Upgrade and enhance bus stops within the city to provide a safer 
and more attractive transit experience for riders.  

Estimated Cost: $5,000

Funding Source: DDA Funds

Ranking: 4

Example of Bike repair kiosk (Source: Dero - Fixit) Existing bus stops on Southfield Road in need of safety upgrades (Giffels Webster, 2020)



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              20

The Recreation Department includes upgrades to City Parks, Community Room, and Fitness Center. The City’s parks are in 
need of restoration and upgrades to maintain safety and accessibility. Several parks are in need of additional wood chips and 
landscaping around play equipment in order to ensure safety of use. Drainage improvements around recreational amenities are 
additionally needed to reduce instances of standing water and to protect accessibility.    

PR20-01 Park Investment Package 

Project Year: 2020/2021

Improvements to Municipal, Lathrup, Sarrackwood, Warren and 
Goldengate Parks. 

Estimated Cost: $20,000

Funding Source: General Fund 

Ranking: TBD

PR20-02 Community Vegetable Garden 

Project Year: 2020/2021

Establish a community vegetable garden in Municipal Park to the 
north of City Hall (or another location if the area is not suitable). 

Estimated Cost: $8,000

Funding Source: General Fund 

Ranking: TBD

PR20-03 Dog park pre-planning

Project Year: TBD
To move forward with constructing a dog park, we need 
professional planning to determine the best location and design 
as well as what budget and timeline are practical.

Estimated Cost: TBD

Funding Source: TBD 

Ranking: TBD

PR20-04 Splash Pad Study and Planning 

Project Year: TBD

Determine if a splash pad would be a good investment for the city, 
what the best location would be and what it would cost.

Estimated Cost: TBD

Funding Source: TBD 

Ranking: TBD

PR20-05 Goldengate Park Update Study and Planning 

Project Year: TBD Professional planning to determine feasibility, design, costs and 
plans for upgrades to Goldengate Park.  Upgrades could include 
addition of naturescapes along the northern wall, water access, a 
pavilion or volleyball court, electrical access, removal of barriers, 
signage and an expanded parking lot.

Estimated Cost: TBD

Funding Source: TBD 

Ranking: TBD

PR20-06 Replace Sarackwood Playground Equipment 

Project Year: TBD

Replace the worn out playground equipment at Sarrackwood 
Park with a new, inclusive model.

Estimated Cost: TBD

Funding Source: TBD 

Ranking: TBD

Parks and Recreation



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              21CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              21

PR20-07 Construction of Dog Park 

Project Year: TBD

Construction and opening of dog park
Estimated Cost: TBD

Funding Source: TBD 

Ranking: TBD

PR20-08 Goldengate Park Remodel 

Project Year: TBD

Revitalization of Goldengate Park
Estimated Cost: TBD

Funding Source: TBD 

Ranking: TBD

PR20-09 Acquisition and Development of SE quadrant park 

Project Year: TBD Acquire the land and develop a park in a currently vacant, private-
owned property lot in the Southeast quadrant of the city.  The lot 
is a little less than an acre in size.  Project cost would depend on 
the types of features desired in the park.

Estimated Cost: TBD

Funding Source: TBD 

Ranking: TBD

Lathrup Village Parks (Giffels Webster, 2020)



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              22

The Lathrup Village Police Department offers full policing services to its residents including routine patrol, traffic enforcement, 
detective services, community relations, and other specialized functions. Lathrup Village holds the distinction of being one of 
the Oakland County’s safest cities. 

P20-01 Axon Taser 

Project Year: 2020/2021- 2021-2022 Tasers increase officer safety and reduce liability to department 
by reducing lethal force. This funding request is for two years at 
$4,450 per year. 

Estimated Cost: $8,900

Funding Source: Police

Ranking: TBD

P20-02 Patrol Vehicle

Project Year: 2021/2022

Need to replace older unit in fleetEstimated Cost: $45,000

Funding Source: Police

Ranking: TBD

P20-03 Speed Trailer 

Project Year: 2020/2021

Estimated Cost: $8.000

Funding Source: Police

Ranking: TBD

P20-04 Mobile Radios

Project Year: 2021/2021
Police communication equipment is needed for patrol vehicles 
and offices prep radios  

Estimated Cost: $30,000

Funding Source: Police

Ranking: TBD

P20-05 New Police Station Study

Project Year: 2021/2022 A study i need to determine where a larger police building could 
possibly be located. A new facility is needed to accommodate 
growth - the current station is at capacity. 

Estimated Cost: $5,000

Funding Source: Police

Ranking: TBD 

Police



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              23

R20-01 Complete Streets - City match

Project Year: 2020/2021 Implement complete streets city-wide bicycle route wayfinding 
elements. Plan includes pavement markings, signage and bike 
repair kiosks. The city received $60,00 in grant funds (Act 51 and 
TAP) and is paying a matching $20,000 ($6,700 from DDA and 
$13,300 from General Fund) for a total of $80,000. 

Estimated Cost: $13,300 

Funding Source: General Fund 

Ranking: 3

R20-02 2020 Paving Program 

Project Year: 2020-2021

Santa Barbra road repair project. Estimated Cost: $250,000

Funding Source: Local/Major Roads 

Ranking: TBD

R20-03 2021 Paving Program 

Project Year: 2021/2022

TBD road repairEstimated Cost: $250,000

Funding Source: Local/Major Roads 

Ranking: TBD

R20-04 2022 Paving Program 

Project Year: 2022/2023

TBD road repair Estimated Cost: $250,000

Funding Source: Local/Major Roads 

Ranking: TBD

The City of Lathrup Village has 26.2 miles of local roads and 7.36 miles of major streets. In each year since 2012, the city has 
dedicated an equivalent of 1.5 to 2 mils of taxable value to repaving local roads. While this did constitute a major increase in 
funding from previous years, it should be noted that based on the engineer’s industry experience, the entire street system should 
be put on a 15-20 year resurfacing cycle. The overall goal is to provide an adequate level of road maintenance within the local 
street system; however, based on the long term estimates, a 20–year resurfacing cycle would require an annual contribution 
of $495,000+ (or approximately 4.2 mils) and adjusted in each subsequent year based on inflation. This will require ongoing 
discussion and policy-setting by City Council.

Roads 



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              24

S A N I TA R Y  S E W E R
The Lathrup Village sanitary sewer system consists of approximately 145,000 linear feet (lft) of sewers ranging in size from 8 inch 
to 24 inches in diameter. Of the 145,000 Ift of sewer, the older portion of the system is comprised of approximately 118,900 
(82%) of vitrified clay pipe, while the newer portion of the system is comprised of approximately 26,100 (18%) Ift of concrete 
pipe. Constructed in the 1920’s as a combined sewer system, the city converted it to a dedicated sanitary sewer system in the 
1960’s (meaning that storm water and sanitary water are not permitted to mix),. It is believed that all residents and businesses 
within the city are connected to the sanitary sewer and there are no active septic systems. Since the City of Lathrup Village 
reached its full development capacity the sanitary sewer system covers the entire city with no need for expansion.

During the construction of I-696, the system was severed and divided into a northern and a southern system that are metered 
and discharged into the Evergreen Farmington Sewage Disposal System (EFSDS). The sewer system north of  I-696 is routed 
to a 3-million-gallon retention tank which is located at the west end of Sunnybrook, near Evergreen Road north of I-696. This 
facility is currently receiving significant maintenance and repair in order to safeguard the operation of the system.

In 2012 and 2013, all sanitary sewers on the south side of I-696 were cleaned and visually inspected for apparent structural 
failures and signs of inflow and infiltration (I & I) and found that approximately 66% of the sewers that were assessed were in 
need of repairs. The city engineer recommended that Lathrup Village repair the identified sewers in an effort to provide structural 
improvements to sewers with multiple cracks within the sewer segment and reduce the amount of infiltration of ground water. 
According to the project’s final report, the majority of the defects can be addressed by either grouting the sewer joints or by 
installing cured-in-place pipe (CIPP). The following map depicts the sewers locations recommended for either joint-grouting or 
CIPP.

The City of Lathrup Village sewer system is a separated system  but still considered a “wet” system due to the presence of 
footing drains. The City’s upgrades and maintenance over the past 15 years has been done with the primary goal of “drying 
out” or removing the ground and storm water from the system; however, recent studies by the Oakland County Water resource 
commissioner’s office has called into question the effectiveness of relining sewer mains and grouting joints as a method of 
lowering inflow and infiltration (l & l). Their current hypothesis is that the sanitary sewer leads and footing drains contribute 
enough I & I to negate any benefits gained from sealing sewer mains. The relining process does add structural integrity to the 
system which prevents against failures and collapse. The cost of sanitary sewer capital projects is calculated into annual sewer 
rates and paid through monthly water and sewer billing. 

Sewer



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              25CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              25

S20-01 2020 Sewer CCTV 

Project Year: 2020-2021
Includes the cost to clean, televise and design sewer improvements 
based on findings. 

Estimated Cost: $120,000

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Ranking: TBD

S20-02 2021 Sewer Improvements 

Project Year: 2021-2022

Perform repairs found during the 2020 CCTVEstimated Cost: $120,000

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Ranking: TBD

S20-03 2022 Sewer Improvements 

Project Year: 2022-2023

Perform repairs found during the 2020 CCTVEstimated Cost: $120,000

Funding Source: Sewer Fund

Ranking: TBD

S TO R M  S E W E R
Of the four infrastructure categories of public infrastructure (sanitary sewer, storm sewer, roads and water), the city’s storm 
sewer system has received the least amount of resources and attention in the last decade. Upkeep of ditches, culverts, and 
drains found in the right-of-way is, by City ordinance, the responsibility of the adjoining property owner.
For many blocks, ditches have not been properly maintained and the culverts have become damaged or have been shifted 
by the freeze/thaw cycle rendering them unable to perform their function. The result is a storm system that functions at a level 
below full capacity and leaves standing water in ditches for days following rainstorms. Poor maintenance on culverts have left 
them slow to drain or impassible, preventing storm water from reaching the proper drains which send water to the Rouge River. 
The current state of the storm and ditch system impacts the subsurface ground water levels and the volume of flow in the city’s 
sanitary sewer system.

Over the next six years, an aggressive maintenance and re-ditching program will be implemented through our contract with 
Lathrup Services LLC. Given the scope of the repairs that are needed, this program could take over ten years to complete. 
Areas where ditches could be enclosed with corrugated drain pipes will also be studied. There was a successful pilot project on 
the 17300 section of Rainbow Drive, which included new approach work. If the success of that project can be replicated though 
cost sharing or a specific millage, the city may be able to remove the need for homeowner ditch maintenance. 



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              26

W20-01 2020 Water Main Repair Program (II of III)

Project Year: 2020-2021 Install approx. 1,700’ of NEW 12” water main from San Quentin to 
Wiltshire (Santa Barbara Phase II of III) 
(Includes 7% engineering fee)

Estimated Cost: $400,000

Funding Source: Water Fund

Ranking: TBD

W20-02 2021 Water Main Repair Program (III of III)

Project Year: 2021-2022 Install approx. 1,700’ of NEW 12” water main from Wiltshire to 12 
Mile. (Santa Barbara Phase III of III) 
(Includes 7% engineering fee) 

Estimated Cost: $180,000

Funding Source: Water Fund

Ranking: TBD

W20-03 2021 Water Main Repair Program 

Project Year: 2021-2022 Replace approx. 1,300’ of existing 6” water main (1928) located in 
San Diego from Rackham to Bloomfield (San Diego Phase I of II) (
Includes 7% engineering fee)

Estimated Cost: $325,000

Funding Source: Water Fund

Ranking: TBD

W20-04 2022 Water Main Repair Program 

Project Year: 2022-2023 Replace approx. 1,900’ of existing 6” deteriorated water main on 
San Rosa and Wiltshire (Southfield to Lathrup) . (
Includes 7% engineering fee)

Estimated Cost: $475,000

Funding Source: Water Fund

Ranking: TBD

W20-05 2023 Water Main Repair Program 

Project Year: 2023-2024 Replace approx. 1,900’ of existing 6”/8” deteriorated water main 
on Lincoln East (Southfield to city border).
(Includes 7% engineering fee)

Estimated Cost: $475,000

Funding Source: Water Fund

Ranking: TBD

W20-06 Gate Valve Replacement 

Project Year: 2021-2026 The City’s gate valves are very old and do not close correctly.  
Budget for the replacement of 27 valves per year for 6 years to 
replace all gate valves installed before 1930 . Useful life is 50 years. 

Estimated Cost: $960,000 ($160K x 6 years)  

Funding Source: TBD

Ranking: TBD

Water



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              27CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN	 					               					              27

W20-07 Fire Hydrant Replacement Program 

Project Year: 2021 - 2025 The City’s fire hydrants are very old and experiencing operational 
issues.  Budget for the replacement of 20 hydrants per year for 6 
years to replace all hydrants installed before 1930 . Useful life is 
50 years.
($90,800 annually x 6 years) 

Estimated Cost: $544,000

Funding Source: TBD

Ranking: TBD

W20-08 Lead and Copper detection 

Project Year: 2021/2022 - 2022/2023
Budget for right-of-way material verification in 2021 and 2022 

($250,000 per year x two years)

Estimated Cost: $500,000

Funding Source: TBD

Ranking: TBD



 

memorandum 
DATE: March 11, 2020  

TO:  Susie Stec, Manager – Community & Economic Development   

FROM: Jill Bahm & Meghan Cuneo, Giffels Webster 

SUBJECT: Zoning Discussion – Building Materials 

 

Introduction 
What prompted this amendment? 

• Innovations in building materials are creating new options for architects and designers. There 
are new products on the market that appear to meet the spirit of the city’s requirements on 
building materials that may be appropriate in terms of longevity and appearance that the 
Planning Commission may wish to consider. 

Current Language 
What does the Zoning Ordinance say?  

Section 5.14: Except as otherwise provided in this ordinance, on all permanent buildings, exterior wall 
construction and exposed, exterior chimneys shall be either brick, natural stone, masonry materials 
other than brick, or a combination thereof, provided all such materials comply with the following 
specifications: 

• All brick made from clay, shale, fire clay, or mixtures thereof shall be hard burned facing brick 
meeting all the specifications contained in American Society for Testing and Materials Standard 
C216-65, for grade SW facing brick. 

• All other brick, stone and other masonry materials not included in the foregoing paragraphs 
shall nevertheless meet the durability, strength, and rate of absorption standards established in 
said above-mentioned specifications. 

• Architectural trim material may be wood, aluminum, or other material of equal strength and 
durability if the building walls proper are of fire-resistant material. Such trim material shall not 
cover more than ten percent of the exterior wall construction. 

• All building materials must also conform to state and local building code requirements. 

Background on Issue   

Why discuss this issue?  

The Planning Commission reviewed a recent project that proposed alternative building materials and did 
not find the current ordinance provided sufficient standards to evaluate whether the materials would 
satisfy the requirements.  



 

ORDINANCE NO __ OF 2018 

ORDINANCE AMENDING  
THE LATHRUP VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE 
MICHIGAN: 
 

PART 1. 

Amend the Intent statement for the R1 district as follows: 

The R1 district is intended to be limited exclusively primarily to single-family dwelling units for use as a 
residence by one family per dwelling unit under regulations specially tailored to preserve the quality of 
life that appeals to the average resident of this city. The City also recognizes that the provision of 
limited off-street parking in this district, adjacent to the Mixed Use districts only, may foster quality 
redevelopment of those parcels that aligns with the City’s vision for a vibrant, pedestrian-oriented 
commercial corridor.   The regulations in this article apply everywhere within an R1 district in addition 
to the other applicable regulations of this ordinance. 

PART 2. 

Amend Section 3.1.2 of the Zoning Code to allow parking as special land uses with a reference to 
conditions as follows: 

3.1.2.C. i. Parking (4.16) to serve customers and employees of uses within 500 ft 

PART 3. 

Amend Section 4 of the Zoning Code by adding Section 4.16 to add standards for parking as follows: 

4.16. Parking in the R-1 District. Parking may be permitted in the R-1 district, subject to standards of 
Section 36-6.2, special land uses, and the following conditions: 

1. The parcel on which the parking lot is located shall share a lot line that abuts the MX – Mixed 
Use district, or is adjacent to a public alley adjacent to the MX district, or shall share a lot line 
with a parcel that is currently developed as a parking lot or is proposed to be developed as a 
parking lot in conjunction with the subject parcel. 

2. Parking areas are setback a minimum of 5 ft from the street right-of-way and 10 ft from a 
residential district. Parking lot ingress and egress shall be at least 20 ft from any adjacent 
property in a residential district. 

3. The parking lot shall be developed so as to maintain the north-south public alley, where one 
exists. Where a public alley does not exist, a public alley or private backstreet equivalent shall 
be provided in conjunction with redevelopment of the parking lot and Southfield Road 
properties, consistent with the City’s Master Plan.  



For PC Discussion: March 17, 2020 
 
 

  2 

4. The parking lot shall not be used for outdoor sales, display, or storage. 

5. The parking lot shall be landscaped and screened as follows: 

A. A 6 ft masonry screenwall shall be located 10 ft from the property line that abuts 
residential property. The wall shall be constructed of red-brown brick or the equivalent 
integrally colored masonry unit and shall include a stone cap. 

B. The 10 ft setback area between the screenwall and residential property line shall be 
landscaped in accordance with Section 5.15.3, buffer requirements.  The wall height shall 
be modified to meet corner clearance requirements at intersections. 

C. All parking lots shall be separated from a public thoroughfare by a planted hedge of small 
shrubs or by a masonry wall a minimum of two (2) feet high. The wall shall be constructed 
of red-brown brick or the equivalent integrally colored masonry unit and shall include a 
stone cap. When a hedge is proposed, it shall be planted and maintained so as to form a 
continuous visual screen. The size and plant spacing shall be configured so that a 
continuous visual screen will be established within three (3) years of planting. 

D. The parking lot shall be landscaped in accordance with Section 5.15.4, parking facility 
landscaping. 

E. The owner of the parking lot shall maintain the landscape buffer area in good condition, 
per Section 5.15.9.B. 

PART 5. 

If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause and/or phrase of this Ordinance or the application thereof is 
declared unconstitutional, unenforceable or invalid by the valid judgment of any court of competent 
jurisdiction such unconstitutionality, unenforceability or invalidity shall not affect any of the remaining 
sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and/or phrases of this Ordinance, since the same would have 
been enacted by the City of Lathrup village without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such 
unconstitutional, unenforceable or invalid section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase.  To this end, 
the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared severable. 

PART 6. 

All other Ordinances, or any parts thereof, which are in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, are 
hereby repealed.  To the extent that any provision or provisions of this Ordinance are inconsistent or in 
conflict with any other provision of the Code of Ordinances or any regulation of the City, the provisions of 
this Ordinance shall be deemed to control. 

PART 7. 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon final adoption and publication of the same in the manner 
prescribed by law. 

This Ordinance was introduced on ____________, by ___________; Notice of Public 
Hearing was published on _____________.  A Public Hearing was held, the title having been read and the 



For PC Discussion: March 17, 2020 
 
 

  3 

Ordinance considered, on motion to adopt by ____________, seconded by _____________, a record vote 
was taken and the following result was had: 

YEA:  

NAY:  

ABSENT:   

WHEREUPON, the presiding officer declared the above Ordinance duly adopted on the 
__________day of _______________. 

ATTEST: 

 
__________________________________  ____________________________________ 
 



2019 05 17 Discussion on Drive-through Uses   2  

Zoning Alternatives  
The Planning Commission may choose to maintain the current standards as written or explore 
alternatives, including the following modification. This is intended to be a simplified standard that gives 
the Planning Commission flexibility in review of materials.   

Section 5.14: Except as otherwise provided in this ordinance, on all permanent buildings, exterior wall 
construction and exposed, exterior chimneys shall be comprised of high-quality, durable and attractive 
materials, including either brick, natural stone, masonry materials other than brick, or a combination 
thereof. Alternative building materials may be permitted by the Planning Commission if the applicant 
demonstrates that the proposed materials achieve the goals noted herein.    provided that the all such 
materials comply with the following specifications: 

• All brick made from clay, shale, fire clay, or mixtures thereof shall be hard burned facing brick 
meeting all the specifications contained in American Society for Testing and Materials Standard 
C216-65, for grade SW facing brick. 

• All other brick, stone and other masonry materials not included in the foregoing paragraphs 
shall nevertheless meet the durability, strength, and rate of absorption standards established in 
said above-mentioned specifications. 

• Architectural trim material may be wood, aluminum, or other material of equal strength and 
durability if the building walls proper are of fire-resistant material. Such trim material shall not 
cover more than ten percent of the exterior wall construction. 

• All building materials must also conform to state and local building code requirements. 



 

Giffels Webster  1025 E. Maple Road, Birmingham, MI 48009  248.852.3100 
Planning  Zoning  Transportation  Engineering  Landscape Architecture  

www.giffelswebster.com 
 

April 9, 2020 
 
Planning Commission 
City of Lathrup Village 
27400 Southfield Road 
Lathrup Village, MI 48076 
 

Site Plan Review 
 
Site:   26710-26780 Southfield Road 
Applicant:  Sam Surnow/ Surnow Company LLC 
Plan Date:  3/23/20 
Zoning:  CV – Commercial Vehicular  
Parcel ID:  24-24-103-032 
Proposal: Façade Renovation  
 
Dear Planning Commissioners, 
 
We have reviewed the site plan and a summary of our findings are below.  Items in bold require 
specific action by the applicant. 
   

  



26710-26780 Southfield Rd – Surnow Plaza – April 9, 2020 
Page 2 

Summary of Findings 
 
Existing Conditions 
 
1. Summary.  The 33,000 sf (0.758-acre) site is zoned CV – Commercial Vehicular.   Properties 

to the north and west across Southfield Road are zoned Commercial Vehicular (CV). The 
property to the south is zoned Mixed Use. A 20-ft wide public alley separates the subject site 
from the adjacent parcels to the east, which are zoned R-1 – Single Family Residential.  The 
subject site is currently developed with a commercial building. The applicant is proposing to 
renovate the façade facing Southfield Road to include new materials and increase the height 
of the west elevation.   

2. Existing site.  The existing 0.758 acre site is a 1 story, 9,450 sf commercial building.  The lot is 
rectangular and includes in addition to the commercial building, an asphalt parking surface, 
a dumpster, landscaping, and a 5 ft brick embossed concrete screening wall along the rear lot 
line. Currently, the building height is 18’-5”.  

3. Adjacent land uses.  Adjacent uses include medical and offices both north and west of the 
site.  Mixed retail uses to the south of the site. East of the site, beyond the public alley, are 
single family homes. 

4. Site configuration and access.  The site has two access drives from Southfield Road, as well 
as access from the alley (Ramsgate Drive at the south end and W Eleven Mile Road at the 
north end). 

Proposed 
5. Use.  Uses will remain consistent with existing building.  

6. Building Materials. The Applicant is proposing to update the façade of the building with new 
materials.  The new façade includes Nichiha fiber cement panels, cultured stone, metal ribbed 
panels, and vinyl fabric awnings to replace the existing wood fascia. Per Section 5.4, all 
permanent buildings and exterior walls shall be either brick, natural stone, masonry material, 
or a combination thereof. All other materials must meet the durability, strength, and rate of 
absorption standards. The applicant submitted detailed material profiles for the Nichiha fiber 
cement panels, cultured stone, and metal ribbed panels which appear to confirm that the 
materials meet the standards. The Planning Commission may wish to discuss these materials 
further with the applicant. 

7. Building Height.  Applicant is proposing to replace the existing roof as well as increase the 
west elevation building height with a parapet wall to 26 ft with alternating storefronts 
increased to 20 ft. The maximum building height in the Commercial Vehicular district is 30 ft, 
therefore the proposed façade is in compliance with the standards.  

8. Parking.  Per Section 5.13.12, personal service and retail uses shall provide one space for each 
200 square feet of usable floor space; restaurants require one space for each 70 square feet 
of usable floor area.  The existing principal building is 9,450 square feet; the applicant notes 
that 19.6% of the building is used as a restaurant. As such, the Zoning Ordinance provides 
that the standard for retail uses may be applied. Therefore, 47 spaces are required and 61 
spaces are provided on site; the site is currently compliant with the standard.  



26710-26780 Southfield Rd – Surnow Plaza – April 9, 2020 
Page 3 

9. Circulation.  The façade renovation should not present any conflicts with the site’s parking.  

10. Landscaping.  Section 5.15.2 requires five percent of the site to be landscaped, which is 1,650 
sf. Parking Lot Landscape requires 15 sf of landscaping for each parking space, with 61 parking 
spaced the additional required landscaping is 915 sf. The applicant is proposing to keep all 
the existing trees, shrubs, and ornamental grasses on the site. In addition, the applicant is 
proposing to add three plant beds along the west side of the parking lot.  These areas plus 
the existing lawn in front of the office building bring the total of landscaping to approximately 
7.8% of the site. 

11. Screening. Section 5.5 requires a protective/barrier wall between the subject site and the 
adjacent residential zoning district (along the residential side of the alley).  The applicant has 
an existing 5 ft masonry screen wall as required.  

12. Lighting. The applicant indicates new exterior lighting fixtures on the updated façade. 
Applicant shall submit a lighting plan.  

 
 
We will look forward to discussing the site plan with the Planning Commission. 

 
Regards, 
 
Giffels Webster   
 
 

 
Jill Bahm, AICP    
 Meghan Cuneo     
Partner     

 Staff Planner 
 



26710-26780 Southfield Rd – Surnow Plaza – April 9, 2020 
Page 4 

 
 
 
  













ENLARGED
LOCATION PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 50'-0"

Site Plan Approval
Lathrup Shopping Plaza Facade Renovation

26710 - 26780 Southfield Road      Lathrup Village, MI       48076

29200 northwestern hwy
suite 160
southfield, mi 48034

SIEGAL

p   248   352   0099
f    248   352   0088
www.sta-architects.com

TUOMAALA/
ASSOCIATES
ARCHITECTS &
PLANNERS INC.

project number:

sheet number:

copyright

2510

P.1
2019

date/revision:
03.18.20 Site Plan Approval

sheet title:

Cover Sheet

Lathrup
Shopping Plaza
Facade Renovation

project name:

project location:

26710-26780
Southfield Road
Lathrup Village,
MI  48076

P.1

P.2

P.3

P.4

P.5

P.6

C1

C2

C3

SITE PLAN

EXISTING & PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

EXISTING & PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

EXISTING & PROPOSED FLOOR & ROOF PLANS

PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS

ENLARGED ELEVATIONS, NIGHT RENDERING

BOUNDARY & TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY

DEMOLITION & SOIL EROSION CONTROL PLAN

SITE IMPROVEMENT & PAVING PLAN

INDEX OF DRAWINGS

EXISTING
 SITE PLAN TO REMAIN

SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

LOCATION PLAN
NO SCALE

CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE, COUNTY OF OAKLAND, STATE OF
MICHIGAN AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

T1N., R10E., SEC 24 LOUISE LATHRUP'S CALIFORNIA BUNGALOW
SUB NO 5 LOTS 2972 TO 2984, INCL., ALSO S 1/2 OF VAC CORAL
GABLES AVE ADJ TO SD LOT 2972-3-28-02 CORR

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

EXISTING SITE AREA : 330' X 100' = 0.758 ACRES

ZONING : CV COMMERCIAL VEHICULAR DISTRICT

EXISTING & PROPOSED BUILDING AREA : 9,450 SF

EXISTING BUILDING HEIGHT : 15'-4 1/2"

MAX. PERMITTED BUILDING HEIGHT : 30 FT (2 STORIES)

MAX. PROPOSED BUILDING HEIGHT : 26 FT (1 STORY)

PARKING

REQUIRED : 1 SPACE PER 200 SF OF USABLE AREA W/ LESS THAN

25% RESTAURANT

NOTE : EXISTING HAPPY'S PIZZA = 1,855 SF ±

1,855 SF / 9,450 SF = 19.6%

REQUIRED : 9,450 SF / 200 = 47 SPACES

(3 ACCESSIBLE SPACES REQUIRED)

PROVIDED : 61 SPACES

(3 ACCESSIBLE SPACES PROVIDED)

DELIVERY

9,450 SF REQUIRES 1 SPACE @ 10' X 40'

NOTE:

EXISTING DELIVERIES UTILIZE THE ALLEY - THIS SHALL
CONTINUE WITH DELIVERIES TO BE MADE DURING
NON-PEAK/OFF HOURS, USING SMALLER TRUCKS.

NOTES:

1. NO ROOF MOUNTED HVAC UNITS.

2. EXISTING SCREENED TRASH RECEPTACLE TO REMAIN.

3. EXISTING LED LIGHT POLES TO REMAIN.

4. SEE CIVIL ENGINEERING AND LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

SITE DATA

SOUTHFIELD ROAD

NORTH

NORTH

SOUTHFIELD ROAD

270 FT

35
'-0

"
39

9'
-1

1"
A

LL
EY

65
'-0

"
2'

-0
"

EXISTING BUILDING
9,450 SF

LATHRUP SHOPPING PLAZA

NORTH

Site

W
. E

le
ve

n 
M

ile
 R

d

W
. E

le
ve

n 
M

ile
 R

d

Southfield Rd
Southfield Rd

C
or

al
 G

ab
le

s A
ve

C
or

al
 G

ab
le

s A
ve

Ra
m

sg
at

e 
D

r

M
ea

d
ow

oo
d

 A
ve

Ra
m

sg
at

e 
D

r

M
ea

d
ow

oo
d

 A
ve

I-6
96

I-6
96

Su
nn

yb
ro

ok
 A

ve
Su

nn
yb

ro
ok

 A
ve

Meadowbrook Way

El D
orado Pl

OWNER:

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS
46777 WOODWARD AVE.
PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5032
PH (248) 332-7931

CIVIL ENGINEER:

THE SURNOW COMPANY, LLC
320 MARTIN STREET
SUITE 100
BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 48009

SIEGAL/ TUOMAALA ASSOCIATES
ARCHITECTS AND PLANNERS, INC.
29200 NORTHWESTERN HIGHWAY
SUITE 160
SOUTHFIELD, MICHIGAN 48034
PH (248) 352-0099

ARCHITECT:

35
 F

T

10
0'

 - 
0"

330' - 0"

EXIST'G
LIGHT POLE

EXIST'G
LIGHT POLE EXIST'G

LIGHT POLE

EX. C.B.

EX. C.B.

EX. C.B.

EXIST'G SCREENED
GROUND MOUNTED
MECH. UNITS

EXIST'G SCREENED &
GATED TRASH ENCLOSURE

22 FT DRIVE AISLE

8'
AISLE

EXIST'G PARKING LOT
(MILL ASPHALT - SEE
CIVIL ENG. DRAWINGS)
- RE-STRIPE SPACES

EXIST'G 5'-0"
SIDEWALK

CONCRETE
BUMPER BLOCK

9' X 20' TYP. SPACE 5'-0"
AISLE

EXIST'G GAS
METERS

EXIST'G A/C
CONDENSERS
W/ LANDSCAPE
SCREENING

3'-0"

EXIST'G BRICK EMBOSSED
CONCRETE WALL : 5 FT HIGH

SAN. M.H.

R-1 RESIDENTIAL

RA
M

SG
A

TE
 D

R.

40'-0" 20'-0"AT&T

W
.1

1 
M

IL
E 

RD
.

PROPERTY LINECV - COMMERCIAL
VEHICULAR DISTRICT

RA
M

SG
A

TE
 D

R.

MX - MIXED USE
ZONING DISTRICT

EXIST'G ALLEY
PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

EXIST'G
DRIVE

EXIST'G
DRIVE

EXIST'G
SIDEWALK

EXIST'G
CURB LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
28" ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
11" SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14" SPRUCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
28" ELM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CHERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9



29200 northwestern hwy
suite 160
southfield, mi 48034

SIEGAL

p   248   352   0099
f    248   352   0088
www.sta-architects.com

TUOMAALA/
ASSOCIATES
ARCHITECTS &
PLANNERS INC.

EXISTING 
WEST ELEVATION (FRONT)
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

project number:

sheet number:

copyright

2510

P.2
2019

date/revision:
03.18.20 Site Plan Approval

sheet title:

Existing &
Proposed
Elevations

Lathrup
Shopping Plaza
Facade Renovation

project name:

project location:

26710-26780
Southfield Road
Lathrup Village,
MI  48076

EXISTING ROOF SHINGLES EXISTING WOOD FASCIA

EXISTING WOOD SIDINGEXISTING PAINTED BRICK

PROPOSED
WEST ELEVATION (FRONT)
PERSPECTIVE - NO SCALE

8'
-1

1"
3'

-4
 1

/2
"

12
'-3

 1
/2

"

18
'-5

 1
/4

"

MODERA LEDGESTONE
(CLAY COLOR)

20'-0" HT

RIBBED METAL PANEL
(CHARCOAL GRAY)

NICHIHA FIBER CEMENT
PANELS (LT. BEIGE COLOR)

METAL COPING (BLACK)

VINYLIZED CANVAS
AWNING (BLACK)

PAINTED BRICK

26'-0" HT

NOTE:   SIGNAGE NOT INCLUDED IN SITE PLAN APPROVAL



18
'-5

 1
/4

"

12
'-3

 1
/2

"

3'
-4

 1
/2

"
8'

-1
1"

12
'-3

 1
/2

"

4'
-4

 1
/2

"
7'

-1
1"

12
'-3

 1
/2

"

4'
-4

 1
/2

"
7'

-1
1"

12
'-3

 1
/2

"
3'

-4
 1

/2
"

8'
-1

1"

18
'-5

 1
/4

"

29200 northwestern hwy
suite 160
southfield, mi 48034

SIEGAL

p   248   352   0099
f    248   352   0088
www.sta-architects.com

TUOMAALA/
ASSOCIATES
ARCHITECTS &
PLANNERS INC.

EXISTING 
EAST ELEVATION (REAR)
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

project number:

sheet number:

copyright

2510

P.3
2019

date/revision:
03.18.20 Site Plan Approval

sheet title:

Existing &
Proposed
Elevations

Lathrup
Shopping Plaza
Facade Renovation

project name:

project location:

26710-26780
Southfield Road
Lathrup Village,
MI  48076

EXISTING ROOF SHINGLES EXISTING WOOD FASCIA

EXISTING PRE-FINISHED SPLIT
FACE BLOCK TO REMAIN

PROPOSED
EAST ELEVATION (REAR)
PERSPECTIVE - NO SCALE

7'
-1

1"
4'

-4
 1

/2
"

12
'-3

 1
/2

"

18
'-5

 1
/4

"

EXISTING 
NORTH ELEVATION 
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

EXISTING 
SOUTH ELEVATION 
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

PROPOSED
NORTH ELEVATION 
PERSPECTIVE - NO SCALE

PROPOSED
SOUTH ELEVATION 
PERSPECTIVE - NO SCALE

EXISTING H.M. DOORS & FRAMES

EXISTING ROOF SHINGLES

EXISTING WOOD FASCIA

EXISTING WOOD SIDING

EXISTING PAINTED BRICK

EXISTING PRE-FINISHED SPLIT
FACE BLOCK

EXISTING CONDENSERS

EXISTING
GAS METERS

EXISTING ROOF SHINGLES

EXISTING WOOD FASCIA

EXISTING WOOD SIDING

EXISTING PAINTED BRICK

EXISTING MECH. EQUIP.
ENCLOSURE

REPLACE EXISTING ROOFING NEW METAL PANEL FASCIA
(CHARCOAL GRAY)

EXISTING PRE-FINISHED SPLIT
FACE BLOCK

EXISTING H.M. DOORS & FRAMES
TO REMAIN (TYP.)

3'-0"

26
'-0

"

NICHIHA FIBER CEMENT
PANELS (LT. BEIGE COLOR)

NEW METAL PANEL FASCIA
(CHARCOAL GRAY)

NEW METAL PANEL FASCIA
(CHARCOAL GRAY)

EXISTING OVERHEAD
DOOR TO REMAIN



EXISTING WINDOW
AND KNEE WALL BELOW.

F.H.
EX.

VACANT
TENANT
SPACE

VACANT
TENANT
SPACE

VACANT
TENANT
SPACE

PERFECT
NAILS

COOPER
STREET
COOKIES

HAIR
BARHAPPY'S PIZZA

MECH.
EQUIP.

EXISTING FLOOR PLAN (TO REMAIN)
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

NORTH

29200 northwestern hwy
suite 160
southfield, mi 48034

SIEGAL

p   248   352   0099
f    248   352   0088
www.sta-architects.com

TUOMAALA/
ASSOCIATES
ARCHITECTS &
PLANNERS INC.

project number:

sheet number:

copyright

2510

P.4
2019

sheet title:

Existing &
Proposed
Floor & Roof
Plans

EXISTING ROOF PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

270'-0"
V.I.F.

31'-0"
V.I.F.

11
'-3

"
V

.I.
F.

4'
-0

"
V

.I.
F.

6'
-1

0"
V

.I.
F.

35
'-0

"
V

.I.
F.

EX. O.H.
1'-0"

EX
. O

.H
.

5'
-0

"

date/revision:
03.18.20 Site Plan Approval

Lathrup
Shopping Plaza
Facade Renovation

project name:

project location:

26710-26780
Southfield Road
Lathrup Village,
MI  48076

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
SCALE: 3/32" = 1'-0"

REPLACE EXISTING ROOF SHINGLES

NEW EPDM ROOF

NEW AWNINGS

D
N

D
N

D
N

D
N

DN DN

EX
. S

LO
PE

D
N

 3
.2

/1
2

EX
. S

LO
PE

D
N

 3
.2

/1
2

EX
. S

LO
PE

D
N

 3
.2

/1
2

EX
. S

LO
PE

D
N

 3
.2

/1
2

EXISTING ASHPALT ROOF SHINGLES

LINE OF WALL BELOW

LINE OF WALL BELOW

EX. SLOPE
DN 3.2/12

EX. O.H.
1'-0"

EX. SLOPE
DN 3.2/12

EX
. O

.H
.

1'
-0

"

EX. MECH. EQUIP. &
ENCLOSURE BELOW

EX. MECH. EQUIP. &
ENCLOSURE



29200 northwestern hwy
suite 160
southfield, mi 48034

SIEGAL

p   248   352   0099
f    248   352   0088
www.sta-architects.com

TUOMAALA/
ASSOCIATES
ARCHITECTS &
PLANNERS INC.

project number:

sheet number:

copyright

2510

P.5
2019

date/revision:
03.18.20 Site Plan Approval

sheet title:

Perspective
Renderings

Lathrup
Shopping Plaza
Facade Renovation

project name:

project location:

26710-26780
Southfield Road
Lathrup Village,
MI  48076

PERSPECTIVE 
LOOKING NORTH
PERSPECTIVE - NO SCALE

PERSPECTIVE 
LOOKING SOUTH
PERSPECTIVE - NO SCALE



29200 northwestern hwy
suite 160
southfield, mi 48034

SIEGAL

p   248   352   0099
f    248   352   0088
www.sta-architects.com

TUOMAALA/
ASSOCIATES
ARCHITECTS &
PLANNERS INC.

project number:

sheet number:

copyright

2510

P.6
2019

date/revision:
03.18.20 Site Plan Approval

sheet title:

Enlarged
Elevations,
Night
Rendering

Lathrup
Shopping Plaza
Facade Renovation

project name:

project location:

26710-26780
Southfield Road
Lathrup Village,
MI  48076

ENLARGED
WEST ELEVATION 
PERSPECTIVE - NO SCALE

ENLARGED
WEST ELEVATION 
PERSPECTIVE - NO SCALE

20'-0" HT

26'-0" HT

26'-0" HT

20'-0" HT

NIGHT
PERSPECTIVE RENDERING
PERSPECTIVE - NO SCALE

NOTE:
SHIELDED LED CONTINUOUS LIGHT STRIP RECESSED
BEHIND METAL COPING TO WASH FASCIA.



SOUTHFIELD RD- 204' WD

C
O

R
A

L
 
G

A
B

L
E

S
 
A

V
E

.

R
A

M
S

G
A

T
E

 
A

V
E

.

Boundary & Topographic
Survey

C1

SCALE:

Part of the Northwest 1 4
of Section 24
T.1 North , R.10 East
Lathrup Village,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Siegal / Tuomaala Associates
31731 Northwestern Hwy,
Suite 261
Farmington Hills, MI, 48334
Ph: 248-851-3325

Lathrup Shopping Center
26754 Southfield Road

SEAL

February 14, 2020

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

project manager:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

L576
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

28 west adams, suite 210

detroit, MI 48226

Tel. (313) 965-2444

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

02-28-20                50% OWNER REVIEW

03-06-20                90% OWNER REVIEW

03-18-20                SITE PLAN APPROVAL

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N

A. Nesbitt

J. Cecil

J. Cecil

LEGEND

NF

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

28 W. ADAMS, SUITE 210

DETROIT, MI 48226

Tel. (313) 965-2444

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

TOPOGRAPHIC & BOUNDARY SURVEY

BY JOHNSON & ANDERSON

CONSULTING ENGINEERS.

PRELIMINARY SITE ENGINEERING

PREPARED BY:

NFE JOB NO: L576

SURVEY NOTE:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

NOTE



SOUTHFIELD RD- 204' WD

C
O

R
A

L
 
G

A
B

L
E

S
 
A

V
E

.

R
A

M
S

G
A

T
E

 
A

V
E

.

SCALE:

Part of the Northwest 1 4
of Section 24
T.1 North , R.10 East
Lathrup Village,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Siegal / Tuomaala Associates
31731 Northwestern Hwy,
Suite 261
Farmington Hills, MI, 48334
Ph: 248-851-3325

Lathrup Shopping Center
26754 Southfield Road

SEAL

February 14, 2020

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

project manager:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

L576
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

28 west adams, suite 210

detroit, MI 48226

Tel. (313) 965-2444

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

02-28-20                50% OWNER REVIEW

03-06-20                90% OWNER REVIEW

03-18-20                SITE PLAN APPROVAL

DEMOLITION NOTES

LEGEND

//////////

C2

Demolition & Soil Erosion
Control Plan

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

A. Nesbitt

J. Cecil

J. Cecil

N
F

N

SILT SACK FILTER DETAIL

UTILITIES

DAMAGE TO PRIVATE PROPERTY

PAVEMENT REMOVAL

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

SUB-SOIL CONDITIONS

SUBGRADE UNDERCUTTING AND PREPARTION

SOIL EROSION / SEDIMENTATION CONTROL



SOUTHFIELD RD- 204' WD

C
O

R
A

L
 
G

A
B

L
E

S
 
A

V
E

.

LEGEND

Site Improvement &
Paving Plan

SCALE:

Part of the Northwest 1 4
of Section 24
T.1 North , R.10 East
Lathrup Village,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Siegal / Tuomaala Associates
31731 Northwestern Hwy,
Suite 261
Farmington Hills, MI, 48334
Ph: 248-851-3325

Lathrup Shopping Center
26754 Southfield Road

SEAL

February 14, 2020

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

project manager:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

L576
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

28 west adams, suite 210

detroit, MI 48226

Tel. (313) 965-2444

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

02-28-20                50% OWNER REVIEW

03-06-20                90% OWNER REVIEW

03-18-20                SITE PLAN APPROVAL

GENERAL PAVING NOTES

C3

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

A. Nesbitt

J. Cecil

J. Cecil

N
F

N

PAVING LEGEND

ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTION

PAVING - THIS SHEET
ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

GENERAL NOTES

TYPICAL ASPHALT OVERLAY SECTION BITUMINOUS BUT T JOINT /WEDGING DETAIL



C
P

C
P

W

X

28
" E

LM

2" 
CHER

RY

2" 
CHER

RY
10

" C
ED

AR

CONCRETE

5' CONCRETE WALK

SN, NO PARKING

STREET
SIGN NO PARKING

GAS MARKER, GAS
LINE TEST STATION

STOP SIGN

5' CONCRETE WALK

2"
 G

A
S

2"
 G

A
S

12
" S

A
N

12" SAN15" SAN

PP W/TELE

RIM 695.13

RIM 694.60

RIM 694.34

RIM 693.47

RIM 695.13

RIM 694.89

RIM 694.05
RIM 692.98

12" INV 691.88

RIM 694.69

RIM 694.81

ASPHALT

ASPHALT

5'
 C

O
N

C
RE

TE
 W

A
LK

CONC

RIM 693.17

RIM 692.76

5'
 C

O
N

C
 W

A
LK

CONC

24" N 685.70
24" E 689.40
24" S 686.00
12" SSW 690.70 24" ST

12" ST

12" ST

24
" S

T

24" ST

12" SW 690.58

24" N 685.33
10" E 691.03 (PLASTIC)
24" S 685.33

24" ST

12" N 690.94

24" N 685.06 +/-
12" E 689.96
24" S 685.06 +/-

12" ST

12" SW 689.99
12" W 689.94

10" E 691.32 (PLASTIC)
10" W 691.17 (PLASTIC)

12" ST

12" NE 690.77
12" ENE 690.97 (CMP)

3/4 FULL OF DIRT

12" E 691.36 (VIT. CLAY)
12" SW 691.41 (CMP)
12" WSW 691.41 (CMP)

12
" S

T

15" N 679.18
12" E 683.43
12" S 679.18
6" W 691.236"

 S
A

N

20'"

 LATHRUP SHOPPING CENTER
BRICK BUILDING

P.P.

CONC

CONC

5' CONCRETE WALK

W/E 690.72

10
" S

T

GAS

W/E 691.37

12" E 690.72 (CMP)
12" W 691.02 (CMP)

RIM 692.88
12" E 691.38 (RCP)
12" W 691.38 (RCP)

1' DIA. INLET (W/RESTRICTED COVER)
3" OF DIRT

2-12" ST (CMP)

12" ST

RESTRICTED COVER

12" W 691.36 (VIT. CLAY)

E

E.
U/

GE.
U/

G

C
P

C
P

C
PC

P

C
P

C
P

C
P

C
P

C
P

C
P

C
PC
P

C
PC

P

C
P

C
P

C
P

C
P

C
P

C
P

3" 
ASH

3" 
ASH

10
" S

T

GAS

EX-1

EX-2

24" ST

313

EX. ASPHALT

32

13

4

66

11

12
" S

T

12" ST

12" ST

CONCRETE

5'
 C

O
N

C
RE

TE
 W

A
LK

4" ST4" S 691.15 (PVC)
12" NE 690.55 (CONC)
12" E 690.55 (CONC)
12" W 690.45 (CONC)

RIM 693.55
12" E 690.35 (PVC)
12" W 690.25 (CONC)

SOUTHFIELD RD- 204' WD
HMA OVER CONC BASE W CURB AND GUTTER

C
O

RA
L 

G
A

BL
ES

 A
V

E.

Part of the Northwest 1 4
of Section 24
T.1 North , R.10 East
Lathrup Village,
Oakland County, Michigan

Siegal / Tuomaala Associates
31731 Northwestern Hwy,
Suite 261
Farmington Hills, MI, 48334
Ph: 248-851-3325

Lathrup Shopping Center
26754 Southfield Road

NF

N

S

W E

SITE

LOCATION  MAP
N.T.S.

W. ELEVEN MILE RD

W. ELEVEN MILE RD

SO
UTHFIELD

 RD

SO
UTHFIELD

 RD

CORAL GABLES AVE CORAL GABLES AVE

RAMSGATE DR

MEADOWOOD AVE

RAMSGATE DR

MEADOWOOD AVE

I-696
I-696

SUNNYBROOK AVE
SUNNYBROOK AVE

M
EA

D
O

W
BRO

O
K W

A
Y

EL
 D

ORA
DO PL

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N S

W
E

Landscape Plan

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

03-04-2020

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

REVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

G. Ostrowski

L576 L1

G. Ostrowski

G. Ostrowski

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

19 96 - 9120

NF
ENGINEERS

nowak & fraus

engineers

5-WF 5-WF 1-AA
5-WF

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS
EXISTING SITE AREA:        33,010.41 S.F.

R.O.W. PLANTINGS
1 TREE PER 50 L.F. OF ROAD FRONTAGE
REQUIRED: 330.22 L.F. OF FRONTAGE / 50 L.F. = 6.6 OR 7 TREES REQUIRED
PROVIDED: 0 TREES, 7 EXISTING

PARKING LOT LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS
15 S.F. OF INTERIOR LANDSCAPING FOR EACH  PARKING SPACE
1 TREE PER 400 S.F. OF REQUIRED AREA
   61 PKG SPACES X 15 S.F. = 915 S.F.
      915 S.F. / 400 S.F. = 2.2 OR 2 TREES REQUIRED
PROVIDED: 1 EXISTING TREE, 1 PROPOSED TREE

SITE LANDSCAPE
5% OF SITE SHALL BE LANDCAPED
REQUIRED:
33,010.41 S.F. X 5% = 1,650.52 S.F.

SUMMARY OF PROVIDED LANDSCAPE
PARKING LOT AREA REQUIRED:         915 S.F.
SITE LANDSCAPE AREA REQUIRED:  1650.52 S.F.
TOTAL AREA REQUIRED: 2,565.52 S.F.
TOTAL AREA PROVIDED: 2,585.86 S.F.

SHALL BE NATURAL IN COLOR.
HARDWOOD BARK MULCH. MULCH
MULCH 3" DEPTH W/ SHREDDED

1/3 OF ROOTBALL.
FOLD DOWN ALL BURLAP FROM TOP 

REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE

6"

NTS
HEDGE PLANTING DETAIL

UNDISTURBED SOIL

SCARIFY SUBGRADE

MATERIALS FROM THE ROOTBALL.

PLANTING MIX, AS SPECIFIED

EARTH SAUCER AROUND SHRUB
NOTES:
TREE SHALL BEAR SAME
RELATION TO FINISH GRADE
AS IT BORE ORIGINALLY.

DO NOT PRUNE TERMINAL LEADER.
PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR BROKEN
BRANCHES.

REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTIC AND OTHER MATERIALS

MAINTAIN 2" CLEAR AREA FROM STEM

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES
1.  LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VISIT SITE, INSPECT EXISTING CONDITIONS
  AND REVIEW PROPOSED PLANTING AND RELATED WORK. IN CASE OF
   DISCREPANCY BETWEEN PLAN AND PLANT LIST, THE PLAN SHALL
   GOVERN QUANTITIES. CONTACT THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT WITH ANY
   CONCERNS.
2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY LOCATIONS OF ALL ON-SITE UTILITIES
   PRIOR TO BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION ON HIS/HER PHASE OF WORK. ANY
   DAMAGE OR INTERUPTION OF SERVICES SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY
   OF THE CONTRACTOR.
3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE ALL RELATED ACTIVITIES WITH
   OTHER TRADES, AND SHALL REPORT ANY UNACCEPTACBLE SITE CONDITIONS
   TO THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT.
4. PLANTS SHALL BE FULL, WELL-BRANCHED, AND IN HEALTHY VIGOROUS
   GROWING CONDITION.
5. PLANTS SHALL BE WATERED BEFORE AND AFTER PLANTING IS COMPLETE.
6. ALL TREES MUST BE STAKED, FERTILIZED AND MULCHED AND SHALL BE
   GUARANTEED TO EXHIBIT A NORMAL GROWTH CYCLE FOR AT LEAST ONE (1)
   YEAR FOLLOWING PLANTING.
7. ALL MATERIAL SHALL CONFORM TO THE GUIDELINES ESTABLISHED IN THE MOST
   RECENT EDITION OF THE "AMERICAN STANDARDS FOR NURSERY STOCK".
8. CONTRACTOR WILL SUPPLY FINISHED GRADE AND EXCAVATE AS NECESSARY TO
  SUPPLY PLANT MIX DEPTH IN ALL PLANTING BEDS AS INDICATED IN PLANT DETAILS
   AND A DEPTH OF 4" IN ALL LAWN AREAS.
9. PROVIDE CLEAN BACKFILL SOIL, USING MATERIAL STOCKPILED ON-SITE. SOIL
   SHALL BE SCREENED AND FREE OF DEBRIS, FOREIGN MATERIAL, AND STONE.
10. SLOW-RELEASE FERTILIZER SHALL BE ADDED TO THE PLANT PITS BEFORE
   BEING BACKFILLED. APPLICATION SHALL BE AT THE MANUFACTURERS RECOMMENDED
   RATES.
11. AMENDED PLANT MIX (PREPARED TOPSOIL) SHALL CONSIST OF 1/3 SCREENED TOPSOIL,
    1/3 SAND, AND 1/3 "DAIRY DOO" COMPOST, MIXED WELL AND SPREAD TO A DEPTH AS
    INDICATED IN PLANTING DETAILS.
12. ALL PLANTINGS SHALL BE MULCHED WITH SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK, SPREAD TO
   A DEPTH OF 3" FOR TREES AND SHRUBS, AND 2" ON ANNUALS, PERENNIALS, AND
   GROUNDCOVER PLANTINGS. MULCH SHALL BE FREE FROM DEBRIS AND FOREIGN
   MATERIAL, AND PIECES ON INCONSISTENT SIZE.
13. NO SUBSTITUTIONS OR CHANGES OF LOCATION, OR PLANT TYPE SHALL BE MADE
   WITHOUT THE APPROVAL OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE.
14. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT SHALL BE NOTIFIED OF ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN
   THE PLANS AND FIELD CONDITIONS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.
15. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING ALL PLANT
   MATERIAL IN A VERTICAL CONDITION THROUGHOUT THE GUARANTEED PERIOD.
16. THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT
   TO REJECT ANY WORK OR MATERIAL THAT DOES NOT MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF
   THE PLANS AND/OR SPECIFICATIONS.
17. THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL SEED AND MULCH OR SOD (AS INDICATED ON
   PLANS) ALL AREAS DESIGNATED AS SUCH ON THE PLANS, THROUGHOUT THE CONTRACT
   LIMITS. FURTHER, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR RESTORING AREAS
   DISTURBED DURING CONSTRUCTION, NOT IN THE CONTRACT LIMITS, TO EQUAL OR
   GREATER CONDITION.
18. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL HAVE PROPER DRAINAGE THAT PREVENTS EXCESSIVE
    WATER FROM PONDING ON LAWN AREAS OR AROUND TREES AND SHRUBS.
19. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED WITH AN AUTOMATIC UNDERGROUND
   SYSTEM.

Armstrong Maple
Acer rubrum 'Armstrong'

TREES

AA 1

PLANT SCHEDULE
QTYKEY BOTANICAL/COMMON NAME SIZE SPACING ROOT

B&BSEE PLAN2.5" CAL

COMMENT

SHRUBS

WF 15 Minuet Weigela
Weigela florida 'Minuet' 24" HT CONT30" OC

FULLY BRANCHED HEADS

GENERAL SEED NOTE:
ALL LAWN AREAS DESIGNATED TO BE SEEDED, SHALL BE HYDRO-SEEDED
WITH SPECIFIED BLENDS, AND STABILIZED WITH WOOD CELLULOSE FIBER MULCH
(2,000 LBS PER ACRE) . IN AREAS SUBJECT  TO EROSION, SEEDED LAWN SHALL
BE FURTHER STABILIZED WHERE NECESSARY WITH BIODEGRADABLE EROSION
BLANKET AND STAKED UNTIL ESTABLISHED. ALL SEED SHALL BE APPLIED OVER A
MINIMUM 3" PREPARED TOPSOIL, AND SHALL BE KEPT MOIST AND WATERED DAILY
UNTIL ESTABLISHED.
SEEDING INSTALLATION SHALL OCCUR ONLY:
SPRING: APRIL1 TO JUNE1
FALL: AUGUST 15 TO OCTOBER 15

NOTES:
TREE SHALL BEAR SAME
RELATION TO FINISH GRADE
AS IT BORE ORIGINALLY OR SLIGHTLY
HIGHER THAN FINISH GRADE UP TO
6" ABOVE GRADE, IF DIRECTED BY
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT FOR HEAVY
CLAY SOILS

DO NOT PRUNE TERMINAL LEADER.
PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR BROKEN
BRANCHES.

REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTIC AND OTHER MATERIALS

MULCH 3" DEPTH WITH SHREDDED
HARDWOOD BARK. MULCH SHALL BE
NATURAL IN COLOR. LEAVE 3" CLEAR
AROUND BASE OF TREE.

USE 3 HARDWOOD STAKES
PER TREE, 36" ABOVE GROUND
FOR UPRIGHT, 18" IF ANGLED.
DRIVE STAKES INTO UNDISTURBED
SOIL 6-8" OUTSIDE ROOTBALL
TO A DEPTH OF 18" BELOW
TREE PIT. REMOVE AFTER ONE
(1) YEAR. WIRE OR ROPE THROUGH
A HOSE SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED.

STAKE TREES JUST BELOW
FIRST BRANCH USING 2-3"
WIDE BELT-LIKE NYLON OR
PLASTIC STRAPS. CONNECT
FROM TREE TO STAKE OPPOSITE.
ALLOW FOR SOME FLEXING.
REMOVE AFTER ONE (1) YEAR.

REMOVE ALL NON-BIODEGRADABLE
MATERIALS FROM THE ROOTBALL.
CUT DOWN WIRE BASKET AND FOLD
DOWN ALL BURLAP FROM 1/2 OF
ROOTBALL

NTS

DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING DETAIL

MOUND TO FORM 3" EARTH SAUCER

NOTE:
GUY DECIDUOUS TREES ABOVE
3" CALIPER, STAKE TREES BELOW
3" CALIPER

PLANTING MIX TO BE AMENDED PER
SITE CONDITIONS AND REQUIREMENTS
OF THE PLANT MATERIAL

SCARIFY SUBGRADE AND PLANTING
PIT SIDES. RECOMPACT PIT BASE TO
4" DEPTH

ALL PROPOSED PLANT BEDS
TO BE FINISHED W/ 3" DEPTH
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK
MULCH, TYPICAL

ALL EXISTING LAWN TREES SHALL
HAVE 4' WIDE MULCH RING, W/ 3"
DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK
MULCH

2

3

RESTORE EXISTING LAWN AREAS W/ HYDROSEED AND MULCH

4' DIA SPADE CUT EDGE W/ 3" SHREDDED BARK MULCH

GROUNDCOVER KEY

3" DEPTH DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK MULCH

1

3 3 3

32

1

1

EXISTING ARBORVITAE SHRUBS
TO REMAIN, TYPICAL

03-18-20 SITE PAN APPROVAL

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN, TYPICAL

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN, TYPICAL

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN, TYPICAL

EXISTING TREES TO
REMAIN, TYPICAL

EXISTING ARBORVITAE SHRUBS
TO REMAIN, TYPICAL

EXISTING ORNAMENTAL
GRASSES (5) TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOUISE LATHRUP'S  CALIFORNIA BUNGALOW SUB. NO. 5 L. 37, P.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEORGE A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OSTROWSKI, JR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1310

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE











































































1025 E. Maple Road, Suite 100  Birmingham, MI 48009  248.852.3100
www.GiffelsWebster.com 

memorandum 
DATE: March 11, 2020 

TO: City of Lathrup Village Planning Commission 

FROM: Jill Bahm, Giffels Webster 

SUBJECT: Parking in MX District 

As some Planning Commissioners may recall, in 2014, and again in 2017, the city considered an 
amendment to the Zoning Ordinance that would encourage redevelopment in the Southfield Road 
corridor. One of the key limiting factors in revitalization of this corridor is the shallowness of the lots. For 
the demolition of an existing building and the construction of a new building to be financially feasible, 
the new construction should provide more value than the building being removed. This would occur if 
the new building offers more usable space. However, to add more usable space requires more on-site 
parking than most sites can provide, given the shallow depths of properties in this corridor. 

Attached is the final packet of information, including the relevant pages from the 2015 Master Plan that 
explains the amendment proposed to address parking in this area. The Planning Commission may wish 
to revisit this subject and evaluate how to proceed. 



 35 City of Lathrup Village Master Plan Update 2014-2017 

six. Commercial Corridor 
Improving redevelopment opportunities for a mix of uses 

I 
n 2012, the City refined its concept for the Village 

Center Area with input from the owner of the Annie 

Lathrup School and feedback from residents (see Fig 

20-21 on previous page). The updated concept 

maintains the framework for the Village Center with the 

street and sidewalk network, and adds in additional 

public space behind the school and a narrow median on 

Southfield Road to facilitate pedestrian crossings. 

 The DDA’s 2013 market study was intended to 

define opportunities and suggest implementation 

strategies for the City to engage redevelopment as well 

as to retain and recruit businesses to the commercial 

areas of the City, particularly the Village Center. 

 As noted in Chapter 4, the context of the study is 

that there are demographic and other changes within 

the United States and Michigan that impact the current 

and future opportunities for Lathrup Village.  In addition 

to those mentioned in Chapter 4, additional changes  

relating to commercial development include: 

 Manufacturing is changing significantly through 

changing technology, technology application and 

the introduction of new materials. Manufacturing 

changes will impact retail and related space in 

significant ways in the future. More buying will be 

based on “on demand” production methods. 

 In the short-term, countering the previous two 

factors is the trend among major box stores and 

others to fulfill online orders from stores versus 

warehouses. 

 Higher education costs continue to rise. 

 In addition to the national trends and patterns 

impacting Lathrup Village, there are significant local 

patterns, including but not limited to those that follow: 

 The regional economy as well as the areas around 

Lathrup Village, like many communities, suffered 

economically during the “Great Recession.”  

Unemployment and under-employment levels 

continue to thwart other growth and economic 

changes. 

 The demographics of the surrounding area and to a 

lesser extent within Lathrup Village have changed.  

The population has aged; depressed or declined 

housing values impacted local revenues; and 

increases in demand for certain goods and services 

is occurring while creating demand in other 

components of the local economy is diminishing. 

 Multiple analyses, including a comparative 

assessment or gap analysis and demand forecasting, 

were performed to define current and future 

opportunities for Lathrup Village.  To determine 

additional potential uses without bias, the property must 

be placed within (a) the context of the larger geographic 

area or market, and (b) the local population. The overall 

purpose of both analyses is to define opportunities and 

niches that are un-met and under-served or could 

potentially be successful at present or in the near future 

in Lathrup Village.  

 

 

 

 



 36 City of Lathrup Village Master Plan Update 2014-2017 

Summary of Findings 

 Growth in housing units and households will result in 

increased demand for retail goods and related services.  

However, countering the increased demand for goods and 

services generated from household growth will be 

increased growth of online sales, at least in the 

foreseeable future, and technological change that will 

result in changes in required inventories within “bricks 

and mortar” operations.   The study does find additional 

demand for retail goods and related services, as well as 

entertainment uses, and office space. The conclusion of 

the study is: 

Housing 

 Market rate units from a low of 20 to as many as 90. 

 Adult/Senior housing units ranging from 75 to 210. 

 Adult compendium care housing from three levels of 

assisted, through nursing care, through hospice. 

 There could be a range of or various physical forms 

other than single-family detached. 

Retail 

 Potential for 75,000 square feet of space. 

 Larger amounts of space are possible depending upon 

niche activity and potential intertwined with 

entertainment. 

 Food service activity and the extension of farmers' 

market through the holiday season if space created 

indoors, niche apparel additions from "on demand" 

production. 

Entertainment. The quality transportation system 

connections within the region make entertainment 

development marketable; however, there is little to no 

probability of such development without a configuration 

in a town/village center development.  

 About 60,000 square feet could be supported in a 

“village center” area.  

 Must capture regional market share. 

 Likely to incorporate food service. 

 Should include passive and indoor recreation 

component in the village/town center. 

Office and “Flex” Space 

 Range from 14,000 to 130,000 square feet capturable 

in Lathrup Village. 

 Focus on select professional and business service 

space. 

 Additional space potential for outpatient medical and 

urgent care activity. 

 

Study Implications for the Master Plan. Increasing 

services for residents and an expanded tax base will not 

likely be significant given the existing configuration and 

deteriorating condition of certain properties. With no 

"green fields" or virgin land remaining, new opportunities 

require reuse of existing structures/properties. 

 One ripe opportunity for redevelopment in the City is 

at the vacant "Annie Lathrup School" property. This 

site can be defined as a negative influence on Lathrup 

Village as the buildings continue to deteriorate. While 

the redevelopment of this site has its own challenges, 

given the historic nature of the structures, the size an 

shape of the parcel will help facilitate site design and 

layout. 

 Another contributing factor to the deteriorating 

conditions along Southfield Road is in the road right-

of-way area  that is typically used as parking 

throughout the corridor. These areas are in rough 

shape, yet significant improvements to these areas is 

out of the hands of property owners as well as the 

City, and these conditions have to be changed.  

Options likely include diminishing the right-of-way, 

gaining enhancement and maintenance control over 

that portion of the right-of-way, or having the State 

and County invest dollars in its improvement.  The 

latter, if that is the path upon which Lathrup Village 

continues, cannot wait five to ten years. 

 In addition to the physical needs of the corridor, the 

City should also be considering the following: 

 Rethinking code application, enforcement procedures 

and the relationship between taxes and property 

revenues (considering formulas more closely related 

to residential) could be of significant benefit to 

Lathrup Village over time. 



 37 City of Lathrup Village Master Plan Update 2014-2017 

 While technically Lathrup Village is a city, many 

stakeholders envision it as a "village" or a small 

community which it is in terms of land mass and 

population. The City should continue to reinforce this 

identity. Such an identity is critical for visitors to 

instantly recognize when they have entered or left 

Lathrup Village and be impressed and comfortable when 

in it. 

 The City must continue to mitigate the impact of 

deteriorating properties through strict code 

enforcement, irrespective of occupancy status 

 The City should continue to identify opportunities for 

placemaking activities—whether public or semi-public 

(such as outdoor dining for restaurants, art displays, or 

unique retail events) 

 The frontage along Southfield for most of its length in 

the City was built in a different era and is no longer 

compatible with modern commercial needs.  The depth 

of the parcels zoned for commercial is often inadequate 

to support modern site and structure design.  

Addressing this issue means creating select parcels with 

greater depth, affording demolition of existing 

structures while preserving the character of surrounding 

areas through limited infringement of residential area 

integrity.   

A concept  to mitigate this issue involves the optional 

conversion of property adjacent to Southfield Road 

properties to be used for parking.  This would allow 

Southfield Road properties to be redeveloped, 

presenting opportunities for new uses and businesses in 

the entire corridor. 

If properly screened and landscaped, this parking area 

would  serve as a buffer between more intense 

commercial uses and the adjacent residential 

neighborhoods.  Images on this page provide examples 

of the types of development that would be appropriate 

in this corridor. A graphic that illustrates this concept 

(“Mixed Use Expansion Area”) is presented on the 

following page (See Fig. 22). 

These findings are incorporated into Goals 1, 2, 3, 4 

and 5 (see Chapter Eight) 



Southfield 
 Road 

6 ft high masonry 

screenwall with 

landscaping on the 

adjacent residential side. 

2-story mixed use building (51,200 sf) 
• Ground floor: retail/office/restaurant 
• Upper floor: residential/office/flex 

Southfield Road 

Si
d

e 
St

re
et

 

Si
d

e
 S

tr
e

et
 

Alley 

10 ft setback 

80 ft deep building (standard for retail space) 

30 ft: alley & buffer 

125 ft: 4 rows parking & drive aisles = 132 spaces 
Sample development option: 
• Ground floor retail/office uses: 4 sp /1,000 sq ft = 102 spaces  
• 20 upper floor residential units:  1.5 spaces/unit = 30 spaces 

10 ft setback 

Existing 20 ft wide alley 

would be maintained, 

whether or not adjacent 

property is redeveloped. 

Concept Sketch for 
Parking in the R-1 district 

320 ft (typ) 

80 ft 



Precedent Images for Redevelopment in the Southfield Road Corridor 


	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020 REVISED.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020 REVISED.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020
	4-21-20 PC Agenda.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 3-17-2020.pdf
	1-21-20 Planning Commission Mtg





	2020 04 20 CIP transmittal memo.pdf
	2020 04 20 Lathrup Village CIP_Highlights.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020 REVISED
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020 REVISED.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020
	PC Agenda Packet 3-17-2020
	2020 03 11 memo on building materials (002).pdf

	PC Agenda Packet 3-17-2020
	2020 03 11 Parking Memo (002).pdf
	2020 03 11 R-1 district-parking.pdf


	PC Agenda Packet 3-17-2020



	2020_04 09_26710-26780 Southfield_Surnow Plaza Review (003).pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020 REVISED
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 4-21-2020
	Lathrup Plaza SPA Application Package.pdf
	PC Agenda Packet 3-17-2020
	2020 03 11 Parking Memo (002).pdf
	2020 03 11 memo on parking.pdf
	2020 03 11 background from master plan.pdf
	parking concept sketch-compressed.pdf




	Lathrup Plaza - SPA Drawings (2020 March 18)_.pdf
	2510 Lathrup Plaza - P.5 PERSPECTIVES.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	P.5 PERSPECTIVES


	2510 Lathrup Plaza - P.4 FLOOR & ROOF PLANS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	2510 Lathrup Plaza - P.3 ELEVATIONS rev.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	P.3 E S N ELEVATIONS


	2510 Lathrup Plaza - P.2 ELEVATIONS.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	P.2 WEST ELEVATION


	2510 Lathrup Plaza - P.1 SITE PLAN revised.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	P.1 SITE PLAN


	2510 Lathrup Plaza - P.6 ENLARGED ELEVS & NIGHT RENDER.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	P.6 ELEVATIONS


	Civil & Ldscp Lathrup Plaza SPA.PDF
	L576_ENG-C1-TOPO
	Sheets and Views
	L576_ENG-C1-TOPO


	L576_ENG-C2-DEMO
	Sheets and Views
	L576_ENG-C2-DEMO


	L576_ENG-C3-SITE
	Sheets and Views
	L576_ENG-C3-SITE


	L576_L1
	Sheets and Views
	L1-LS









